

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MEETING : Monday, 15th September 2014

PRESENT : Cllrs. Lugg (Chair), S. Witts (Vice-Chair), Gravells (Spokesperson), Haigh, Hanman, Lewis, Wilson, Ravenhill, Dee, Taylor, Beeley, Hansdot, Toleman, Pullen

Others in Attendance

Councillor James, Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Culture and Leader of the Council Councillor David Norman MBE, Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources Mr Greg Maw, Financial Accountant Mr Adam Balding, RWC Event Co-ordinator

APOLOGIES : Cllr. Field

27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

28. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2014 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

29. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)

There were no questions from members of the public.

30. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)

There were no petitions or deputations.

31. FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 1

The Chair welcomed Councillor Norman, MBE, Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources, and Mr Greg Maw, Financial Accountant, to the meeting.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15.09.14

Members were presented with a report which set out financial monitoring details, including budget variances, year end forecasts, and progress made against agreed savings targets for the first quarter ending 30 June 2014 (Q1). The report also highlighted some key performance indicators. Overview and Scrutiny Committee was asked, subject to any recommendations it wished to make to the Cabinet, to note the contents of the report.

Members discussed the following matters:-

- 1. The potential risk of the additional savings of £400K on the Amey contract not having yet been identified (paragraph 7.2). Councillor Norman confirmed that negotiations were ongoing with Amey to identify these savings.
- 2. A Member remarked that the consultant engaged to review Cultural Services should focus on generating income for the service rather than concentrating on reducing the running costs of the service to the Council (paragraph 7.2). Councillor Norman responded that the consultant was exploring ways of making the Guildhall more profitable and drew Members' attention to paragraph 5.2 which stated that the budget set for the Guildhall had been unrealistic.
- 3. A Member asked when the restructure for the Regeneration teams would be available. Councillor Norman said that he hoped that this would be ready shortly and that he was confident that the projected savings could be achieved (paragraph 7.2).
- 4. Two Members pointed out that nearly 3 months had elapsed since the end of quarter 1 and that the Committee should be receiving more up to date information, particularly regarding savings on the Amey contract. It was considered that the monitoring reports should be aligned to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee dates to ensure that the data the Committee received was meaningful. Councillor Norman agreed to discuss this with the Head of Finance. Mr Maw said he would provide up to date information to the Committee on the position of discussions regarding savings on the Amey contract.
- 5. There was a discussion on projected figures for the garden waste collection service. Under this item a Member queried how crews knew which households had signed up to the service. The Committee was informed that drivers had a list and so were fully aware of which households had paid for the service, although it was believed that the Cabinet Member for the Environment intended to review the process.
- 6. A Member queried whether it was proposed to procure hardware and software through Civica (paragraph 6.1). Mr Maw agreed to provide this information separately to the Committee.
- 7. The definition of 'Public Protection' was clarified.

RESOLVED:

- (1) That Cabinet be asked to review the dates when the Monitoring Reports were provided to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to ensure the information was up to date.
- (2) That the report be noted.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15.09.14

32. RUGBY WORLD CUP UPDATE

The Chair welcomed Councillor James, Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Culture, and Mr Adam Balding, RWC Event Co-ordinator.

Members were presented with an update which asked them to note progress made against the key issues for the delivery of the Rugby World Cup (RWC) in 2015.

Members discussed the following matters:-

- 1. The role of the City's MP in the lead up to the event. Councillor James replied that a team approach was being taken and that Mr Graham contributed by using his influence to lobby organisations and to also identify where Government funds could be drawn upon.
- 2. A Member queried whether publicity posters were being withheld in certain areas of the City for conservation reasons. Councillor James responded that he believed this was not the case.
- 3. The colour of the banners was discussed and Members were informed that the Council had no jurisdiction in this regard.
- 4. A Member asked if other businesses apart from the main sponsors would be able to get involved in the Fanzone area. Mr Balding replied that there might be opportunities for businesses in other parts of the City, but that these matters had yet to be determined. Councillor James added that sponsorship rules were strict and it was important for the City to come up with other ways of promoting Gloucester such as the Tall Ships event and the Sculpture Trail. The importance of the legacy from the RWC was emphasised.
- 5. A Member queried the role of volunteers and how their efforts would be recognised. Mr Balding replied that around 60 volunteers would be recruited and that they would act as 'meeters and greeters' and would help to create a carnival atmosphere. There would be a clear distinction between the role of a steward and a volunteer. Volunteers would receive some form of accreditation for their contribution.
- 6. A Member referred to a brownfield site in his ward which was being developed and asked whether there was any possibility of receiving funding towards a rugby pitch which was planned as part of the development. Councillor James said that there was no specific funding available to clubs arising from the RWC. Mr Balding agreed to provide the Member with contact details from the Regional Legacy Group who might be aware of potential funding streams.
- 7. There was a discussion on the proposed improvements to be made to Gloucester Railway Station. A Member welcomed the recent agreement which had been reached for the project and asked if the work would be done before the RWC started. Councillor James informed the Committee that meetings were taking place with Network Rail and First Great Western, that the plans were ambitious, and that it was unlikely that all the enhancements could be carried out in time for the tournament. Councillor James reminded the Committee that the improvements would benefit the City for years to

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15.09.14

come. The Member suggested that the MP might exert his influence to encourage Network Rail and First Great Western to complete the work earlier to create a good impression for visitors. Another Member commented on the poor appearance of the railway tunnel.

- 8. A Member queried the anticipated visitor numbers and whether tourists were likely to stay in the City or move around to other games. Mr Balding said that this would be difficult to predict. He was aware that Japanese tourists were more likely to come in groups for one or two days and then move around. Certainly, it was hoped that visitors would stay for a minimum of 2 nights in Gloucester. Events such as the Tall Ships and the Sculpture Trail would help to make the City more of a destination.
- 9. A Member speculated on whether residents and businesses close to the ground would be encouraged to improve the appearance of their premises. Councillor James said that neighbourhood partnerships would play a key role in this regard and emphasised that it was vital to get as many people involved as possible. The Committee was pleased to note that resurfacing works to Kingsholm Road were scheduled for the summer of 2015. Another Member commented that it was important to get the route from the bus station to the ground as clean as possible and that it was important to act now to crack down on flytipping and other litter contraventions.
- 10. Reference was made to the fans coming from the USA. The Committee discussed the need to capitalise on the City's historical connections with the USA.
- 11. A Member enquired how coaches dropping off and picking up travellers would be managed to avoid the City becoming gridlocked. Mr Balding explained that the Traffic Management Group were dealing with this aspect and added that he was confident that traffic would be kept moving. Councillor James remarked that different issues were likely to emerge with each match and that it was important to be flexible in the approach to managing problems.
- 12. A Member asked if there were any plans to engage with the armed forces. Mr Balding agreed to look into this.
- 13. The Committee was pleased to note that hotels were filling up for the tournament and that this would be kept under review.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.

TREE POLICY - UPDATE ON PROGRESS FOLLOWING IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW POLICY

The Chair announced that this item had been deferred to the meeting on 1 December 2014.

34. CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet's Forward Work Programme be noted.

35. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 15.09.14

The Committee considered the latest version of its work programme and made the following observations:-

- It was agreed that the item on GFirst LEP be deferred from 13 October 2014 to a date when the Chief Executive of that organisation was able to attend in person.
- It was agreed that a Member from the Streetcare Strategic Partnership be invited to the meeting on 1 December 2014 for the Amey Performance Monitoring item as the Streetcare Strategic Partnership was privy to detailed monitoring information for the Amey contract.
- It was agreed that once Audit and Governance Committee had investigated governance issues arising from the IT outage issues of July 2014 that a report would be prepared for a future Overview and Scrutiny Committee to examine matters within the Committee's remit.

RESOLVED: That the Scrutiny Work Programme be noted.

36. ARRANGEMENTS FOR NEXT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING ON 13 OCTOBER 2014

Members discussed the arrangements for the 'Question Time' panel which was due to take place on 13 October 2014. It was agreed that a pre-meeting should be arranged with Lead Members to draw up questions for the Panel. It was further agreed that the Head of Regeneration and Economic Development would be asked to attend the pre-meeting and the meeting on 13 October 2014.

37. MEMBER UPDATE ON OUTSIDE BODIES' ACTIVITIES

The Committee received updates on the work of the Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel.

RESOLVED: That the updates be noted.

38. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday 13 October 2014 at 18.30 hours.

Time of commencement: 18:30 hours Time of conclusion: 20:05 hours

Chair